
#1 & 3 Harbor Dr  

 
 

September 2, 2020 
 
Alaina Lipp 
Community Development Department 
City of Sausalito 
420 Litho Street 
Sausalito, CA  94965 

 
      Subject: #1 & 3 Harbor Drive: List of Changes  
 

Dear Alaina, 
 
Please see the summary of changes made for the resubmitted drawings dated 8/24/20. 
 
1.  L-1 is divided into two sheets, L-1.1 (site improvement) and L-1.2 (tree inventory and removal). 
 
2. On L-1.1, Per the request made during the Planning Commission meeting, a rough idea of the water savings by replacing the 

existing lawn irrigated with spray to the drip irrigated, water-wise/native plants is included. An example of the expected savings 
for a week in July with this replacement is shown. 

 
3. To address the concern of the commissioners and the neighbor’s for the tree removal, we revisited the plan.  
 

i. Only remove two large Lombardi Poplars, which are very close to Building 3 and are causing hardscape damage 
and potential hazards to the building and the occupants. One willow along Bridgeway is also proposed to be 
removed.  
 

 ii. Instead of removing the remaining large poplars, we propose interplanting new trees (Eucalyptus or alternate, 
Ginkgos). As they grow they will replace the existing large trees in time. 

 
 iii. Monterey Pines and Acacias to be removed (not protected and on the undesirable tree list in Sausalito). 
 
 iv. Leave other ornamental trees unless there is problem with their health, structure or form.  

 
4. A row of street trees (Magnolia ‘Little Gem’ – Dwarf Southern Magnolia) will be added along Bridgeway. 
 
5.  Asphalt along Harbor Drive  is to remain.  
 
6. Master Plan is updated to reflect items #3 to #5 above.   

  
Please contact us with any questions or if you need additional information.  

 
 

Sincerely, 
 
Kai Okada 
Pedersen Associates  
(415) 456-2070 
kokada@pedersenassociates.com 





From MWELO (Model Water Efficient Landscape Ordinance) definition 
“reference evapotranspiration” or “ETo” means a standard measurement of 
environmental parameters which affect the water use of plants. ETo is expressed 
in inches per day, month, or year as represented in Appendix A, and is an 
estimate of the evapotranspiration of a large field of four- to seven-inch tall, cool-
season grass that is well watered.  
 

• Estimated Total Water Use (ETWU) = ETo x *0.62 x ETAF x Area 
* 0.62, in definition, is a conversion factor that convers acre 
inches per acre per year to gallons per square foot per year.  

 
• ETAF (ET adjustment factor) = PF/IE 

 
• PF (Plant Factor) =  very low water use 0 to 0.1 

Low   0.1 to 0.3 
Moderate  0.4 to 0.6 
High   0.7 to 1.0 
Cool season grass 1.0 

 
• IE (Irrigation Efficiency) = Spray Head  0.75 

Drip  0.81  
 
 
From California Irrigation Management Information System (CIMIS) 
Northern California Coast (Zone 1) in July : ETo = 4.65 inch/month 
 
 
Area to be converted from lawn to water-wise plants = approx.21,800 square foot 
 
 
Existing  
Plant Type: Cool Weather Lawn (PF = 1) 
Irrigation Method: Spray (IE = 0.75) 
 
ETWU = 4.65 x 0.62 x (1/0.75) x 21800  
= 83,799 gallon per month 
 
       
Proposed 
Plant Type: “Mow Free” Low Water Use Grass & Low and Moderate Water Use 
Plants (PF = 0.4 average) 
Irrigation Method: Drip (IE = 0.81) 
 
ETWU = 4.65 x 0.62 x (0.4/0.81) x 21800 
= 31,037 gallon per month 
 
 
The water saving is 
 
83,799 gallon per month - 31,037 gallon per month 
 = 52,762 gallon per month 
 = approx. 13,191 gallon per week in July  
 
 
 



PROTECTED TREE 
TREE REMOVAL 

PERMIT REQUIRED

SAUSALITO 
UNDESIRABLE TREE UNPROTECTED TREE

ID ID Species ID Species
29 Weeping Willow 2 Blackwood Acacia 12 Lombardi Poplar
37 Lombardi Poplar 3 Blackwood Acacia 52 Purple leaf Plum
38 Lombardi Poplar 24 Monterey Pine TOTAL 2

TOTAL 3 32 Monterey Pine
41 Monterey Pine
45 Monterey Pine
48 Monterey Pine
49 Monterey Pine
51 Monterey Pine
64 Monterey Pine
88 Monterey Pine

TOTAL 11
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ASSIGNMENT/ PURPOSE 
As a part of a landscape improvement project, Kai Okada, of Pederson Landscape Architecture contacted 
Urban Forestry Associates to assess trees at the 1 and 3 Harbor Drive, a commercial property in Sausalito. 
The purpose was to assess the species and condition of the trees onsite, and document trees slated for 
removal to satisfy the City of Sausalito’s arborist report requirements.   

SUMMARY 
A total of 16 trees will be removed for the project, 3 of which require a permit.  

 The following (3) trees scheduled for removal and require a permit: 29, 37, 38 (See Table 1)  

METHODOLOGY 
1. Identify trees to species and assign condition ratings. Specific observations related to tree condition 

were included in the comments section of the inventory   
2. Measure trunk diameter at 4.5” above grade unless noted otherwise in the inventory.   
3. Determine protected status using the Sausalito Municipal Code  
4. Label trees in the field with an aluminum tree tag relative to the inventory found on the map that is to 

accompany this report 
5. Photography was produced of each tree included in the report which can be made available upon 

request.  

OBSERVATIONS/ DISCUSSION 
A total of 101 trees were included in the inventory, most of 
which are non-native, ornamental species. I understand that 
the property owner is interested in updating the plant palette 
onsite to reduce water use, abate undesirable tree 
characteristics, and improve aesthetics.  

Most protected trees onsite are Fremont cottonwood (Populus 
fremontii) and Lombardy poplar (Populus nigra ‘italica’) trees. 
High water use, root issues, and frequent pruning by the 
species are a few notable downsides to both cottonwood and 
poplar trees. Also limited planter space is a concern due to the 
history of root damage.      

Removal of high water-use trees and plants is planned (in 
part) to reduce water use onsite. Both cottonwood and poplar 
trees require regular irrigation to thrive.      

Surface rooting and conflicts with infrastructure was a 
reoccurring issue observed with poplar trees, especially for 
trees near asphalt and/ or drainage v-ditches (See Figures 1, 
2). Many planting basins onsite are narrow and do not 
accommodate the large growth potential of both cottonwoods 
are poplar. Consequently, asphalt repairs appear to have been 
performed in many areas of the properties where roots have 
caused issues.  

Many cottonwood trees have not reached their full growth 
potential, so if left to grow, continued issues (such as asphalt 
or hardscape damage) are likely to occur. All this considered removing and replacing problematic trees is a 
reasonable option for the property owners.   

The young New Zealand Christmas trees (Metrosideros excelsa) are performing very nicely. The trees are 

Figure 1- Cracked v-ditch in foreground 
caused by the surface roots of Tree #38.  
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_______________________________ 
Zachary Vought, Urban Forester 
ISA Certified Arborist WE-9995A 
 

well-stablished but do not appear to have received pruning recently. In the first five years of a tree’s life, 
structural pruning can have a huge impact on the tree by removing defective or competing stems (See Pages 
14, 15).  

Monterey pine (Pinus radiata) trees are performing suboptimal onsite. While a select few are in good health 
most are declining and thus have a poor suitability onsite over the long term due to their sensitivity to drought 
and susceptibility to pests and disease.  
 
SCOPE OF WORK / LIMITATIONS 
Information regarding property boundaries, land ownership, and tree ownership was evident from a land 
survey, property fencing and/or provided by  the client. UFA has no personal or monetary interest in the 
outcome of this matter.  All determinations reflected in this report are objective and to the best of our ability.  All 
observations regarding the sites and trees were made by UFA personnel, independently, based on our 
education and experience. Determinations of the health and hazard potential of the subject trees are through 
visual inspection only and of our best professional judgment. 
 
The health and hazard assessments in this report are limited by the visual nature of the assessment.  Defects 
may be obscured by soil, brush, vines, aerial foliage, branches, multiple trunks or other trees.  None of the 
subject trees were examined using invasive techniques such as increment coring or Resistograph® tests.  The 
probability of tree failure is dependent on a number of factors including: topography, geology, soil 
characteristics, wind patterns, species characteristics (both visually evident and concealed), structural defects, 
and the characteristics of a specific storm.  Structurally sound, healthy trees fail during severe storms.  
Consequently, a conclusion that a tree does not require corrective surgery or removal is not a guarantee of no 
risk, hazard, or sound health. 
 
TREE WORK STANDARDS AND QUALIFICATION 
All tree work, removal, pruning, planting, shall be performed using industry standards as established by the 
International Society of Arboriculture. Contractor must have a State of California Contractors License for Tree 
Service (C61-D49) or Landscaping (C-27) with general liability, worker’s compensation, and commercial 
auto/equipment insurance. 
Contractor standards of workmanship shall adhere to current Best Management Practices of the International 
Society of Arboriculture (ISA) and the American National Standards Institute (ANSI) for tree pruning, 
fertilization and safety (ANSI A300 and Z133.1). 
 
SOURCES 

• Field data collected by Urban Forestry Associates in November, 2019  
• Site plan provided by Pederson Landscape Architecture.  
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Table 1. Heritage trees scheduled for removal 
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Table 2. Full Inventory 
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Example of Structural Pruning  
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Structural Pruning Explanation- Sourced from ‘Structural Pruning: A guide for the green industry’ 2013 
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